
United Nations 

GENERAL 
ASSEMBLY 
NINTH :)E!:iSION 
Officwl Necords 

CONTENTS 
Page 

Agenda item 2! : ·~ 
Admission of new Members to the United Nations 

(continued) : ', 83 
(a) Report of the Committee of Good Offices; j 
(b) Admission of Laos and Cambodia 

Chairman: Mr. Thor THORS (Iceland). 

AGENDA ITEM 21 

Admission of new Members to the United Nations 
(continued): 

(a) Report of the Committee of Good Offices 
(A/2720, A/AC.76j2, A/AC.76j3, A/AC.76/ 
4, A/ AC.76/5, A/ AC.76/6, A/ AC.76j9, 
A/ AC.76/IO, A/ AC.76/ll, AjAC.76jl2, 
A/AC.76jL.7jRev.l, A/AC.76jL.8, A/AC.76/ 
L.9, A/AC.76/L.IO); 

(b) Admission of Laos and Cambodia (A/2709 
and Add.l, A/AC.76/L.4) 

1. Mr. DERINSU (Turkey) associated himself 
with previous speakers in paying tribute to the efforts 
of the Committee of Good Offices. Even if the Com
mittee's report (A/2720) gave rise to a feeling of 
frustration, it \vas some consolation to note its view 
that all pos:"ibilities of reaching an understanding had 
not been exhausted; and the Turkish delegation felt 
that the Committee should be requested to continue its 
efforts. 
2. Turkey';:; position on the problem remained un
changed. Applications for admission should be consid
ered individuallv and on their merits, and only those 
States which fulfilled the conditions set forth in 
Article 4 of the Charter should be admitted to mem
bership. However, applications from fourteen States 
had received more than the required number of votes 
in the Securit\' Council, and had been approved by the 
General Asse~11bly; hut favourable action had been 
blocked by the negative vote of one of the permanent 
members of the Security Council. 
3. He would support the joint draft resolution 
(A/ AC.76jL.4). which represented a constructive ap
proach to the problem. On the other hand, the !-JSSR 
draft resolution (A/ AC.76jL.7 /Rev.1) was mcom
patible with his delegation's position and he could not 
accept it. He would speak at a later date on the Indian 
draft resolution (A/ AC.76/L.8), which his delegation 
was studying \Vith interest. 
4. Mr. WEAVER (Canada) joined with previous 
speakers in paying tribute to the efforts of the Com
mittee of Go~d Offices, and said that the Committee's 
failure to make any progress was certainly not due to 
any lack of zeal. It should continue its work, in order 

83 

AD HOC POLmCAL COMMITIEE, 2Jst 
MEETING 

Friday, 5 November 1954, 
at 10.45 a.m. 

New York 

that advantage might be taken of any favourable op
portunity for solving the problem. 
5. There were fourteen States, the admission of which 
had been overwhelmingly supported by the General 
Assembly and by the Security Council but which had 
been denied admission because of the veto of one of the 
permanent members of the Security Council. The 
United Nations could not claim to speak for the world 
as a whole and would be unable to carry out its obliga
tions satisfactorily until a solution had been found to 
that problem. It was a matter of the greatest im
portance to bring about a settlement and admit to mem
bership all States which fulfilled the conditions con
tained in the Charter. 
6. The Secretary-General, in the introduction to his 
annual report (A/2663) had suggested that a beginning 
towards breaking the present log-jam might be made 
with some of the countries which did not "directly 
enter into the balance between the conflicting camps". 
The Canadian delegation would support any efforts to 
implement that suggestion, and had therefore listened 
with regret to the Polish representative's unfavourable 
comments (18th meeting) on the central idea of the 
Secretary-General's proposal. 

7. Turning to the draft resolution submitted by 
Australia, Pakistan and Thailand (A/ AC.76/L.4) he 
pointed out that the Canadian Government had recog
nized the independence of Laos and Cambodia and had 
in the past supported their applications for member
ship in the United Nations. After careful consideration 
it had decided not to change its position despite the 
fact that the Agreement on the cessation of hostilities 
had as yet not been fully implemented. Furthermore, 
the fulfilment of the terms of that agreement appeared 
to have no significant bearing on the international 
status of the two countries, in view of the fact that 
their independence had received very general recog
nition at Geneva. 

8. His delegation would therefore give its whole
hearted support to the joint draft resolution which, as 
the Australian representative had said (17th meeting), 
could have the effect of breaking the deadlock and lead
ing to the admission of other applicants. 

9. Mr. BARRINGTON (Burma) said that the item 
under discussion was one of the greatest importance 
and one which, if a solution was not reached, could 
\vell jeopardize the future existence of the United 
Nations. 

10. His delegation had little doubt that the veto could 
be used in the Securitv Council in connexion with 
applications for member;hip. It was a practice that the 
United Nations had accepted over the years, and unless 
the Charter was revised- a remedy that might be 
worse than the disease- it had to be accepted as such. 
That being so, there was little to be gained by recrimi
nation; the fact that only one permanent member of the 

A/ AC.76/SR.21 



84 General Assembly- Ninth Session -Ad Hoc Political Committee 

Security Council had used the veto was simply a sad 
reflection of the international situation, and that State 
should not be criticized for exercising its legal right. 
The other permanent members would undoubtedly 
avail themselves of the same right if they felt that it 
became necessary; in fact, one of them had already 
served notice of its intention to do so in connexion with 
a question which was far more procedural in character 
than that of the admission of new members. 

11. Once the applicability of the veto was accepted, 
it became evident that the problem was not a juridical 
but essentially a political one. The United Nations 
being a political, not a judicial body, political con
siderations must inevitably influence the interpretation 
of Article 4, paragraph 1 of the Charter. Thus the 
problem had been unable to escape the impact of the 
political tides of the present time; and as a result a 
deadlock had been reached. In other words, the United 
Nations had become a kind of exclusive club in which 
there were two factions, each of which opposed all nev.r 
applications for membership by States supported by the 
other, regardless of their fitness for membership. 

12. Since the problem was political, it was obvious 
that political solutions must be sought, that is, a com
promise. To continue to hope for a rapid solution would 
simply confuse the problem and delay its settlement still 
further. It was in the search for a compromise that 
those Members of the United Nations who belonged 
to neither faction could be of some service, and as in 
previous years his delegation \vould spare no efforts to 
that end. A log-jam, to use the Secretary-General's 
term, could be broken up in its initial stages by the 
judicious removal of a few logs; but if ignored for long, 
dynamite became necessary. It would be unwise to 
wait for that. 

13. His delegation believed that universality of mem
bership would be of great benefit to the United Na
tions; it therefore wished once again to appeal to the 
two sides to try to reach an understanding, even if 
such an understanding was only limited at first. The 
United Nations could not claim to be a world organi
zation if many countries in all parts of the world were 
excluded from its membership. The crowning argu
ment in favour of universality was the fact that the 
world was living in the shadow of the hydrogen bomb. 
Viewed in that light, the whole question assumed great 
and compelling urgency, and differences between na
tions became a reason for their admission. 

14. \Vhile Chapter VII of the Charter was not 
obsolete it was likely to become so in time, but the 
world could not afford to let matters reach a stage 
where action under that Chapter might be called for. 
At the same time, greater emphasis and reliance would 
be placed on Chapter VI ; and the first step towards 
ensuring the effectiveness of that Chapter should be to 
make certain that every potential party to a dispute, 
regardless of its political system, became a Member of 
the United Nations. It was only realistic to assume 
that in an atomic age every country in the world 
desired peace. 

15. His delegation therefore still felt confidence that 
a solution to the problem would be found, and would 
support any efforts in that direction. 

16. He thanked the Committee of Good Offices for its 
efforts; they would undoubtedly be beneficial in the 
long run. 

17. Mr. VA VRICKA (Czechoslovakia) said that the 
hopes aroused by the establishment of the Committee 
of Good Offices had not been fulfilled. Unfortunateh• 
the Committe~'s report was very brief; his delegatio~ 
would have wished for a fuller account of its activities. 
its consultations with the permanent members of the 
Security Council and the positions of the great 
Powers. 

18.. He d~ew attention to paragraph 5 of the report, in 
which applicant States had been classified according to 
the number of votes they had received in the Securitv 
Council. That was an extremely mechanical procedure 
and unless the Committee of Good Offices had wanted 
to cast doubt on the principle of unanimity, it served 
no useful purpose. Applications for membership had to 
be supported by seven votes, including the concurring 
votes of the fiv~ permanent members; but paragraph S 
conveyed the Impression that in the opinion of the 
members of the Committee of Good Offices States 
which had received seven affirmative votes' in the 
Security Council automatically fulfilled the conditions 
laid down in Article 4 of the Charter while the States 
which had not received seven affirmative votes- which 
happened to be those to which the United States ob
jected- did not fulfil those conditions. That view was 
quite unacceptable. 

19. Furthermore, paragraph 5 gave a distorted picture 
of the actual situation. It omitted to mention the fact. 
to which the Indian representative had referred that 
the applications of the people's democracies hact' been 
r~jectecl only by virtue of abstentions, specifically, those 
ot the \Vestern Powers. The French, United Kingdom 
and United States representatives had attempted to 
place the responsibility for the deadlock on the USSR. 
reproaching it for its use of the veto; but an abstention 
by one of the permanent members of the Securitv 
Council was just as effective a method of rejecting ai1 
application. In that light it was clear that the Western 
Powers were using abstentions as a form of camouflaged 
veto. 

20. Only the principle of unanimity which ~pplied in 
the Security Council prevented the \Vestern Powers 
from securing the admission of States which they sup
ported while at the same time excluding other States 
of whose internal systems they disapproved. For that 
reason many attempts had been made to put through 
decisions involving the suspension of principles in con
nexion with the admission of new Members. Fortu
nately, the number of States that wished to deal with 
the problem in that way, which would be a violation 
of the Charter, \vas diminishing. 

21. It should surely have been recognized in the 
course of the discussion at the eighth session that the 
objections to the simultaneous admission of several 
States were groundless; he drew attention in that con
nexion to the conclusion set forth in annex 7, para
graph 10, of the report to that session submitted by the 
Special Committee on Admission of New Members 
( A/2400). Simultaneous admission would not violate 
any of the provisions of the Charter. The object of the 
L.;"SSR draft resolution (A/ AC.76jL.7 /Rev.1) was to 
put an end to the present situation in which the ad
mission of a number of States to the United Nations 
was being denied for political reasons. All the States 
mentioned in the draft resolution fulfilled the condi
tions contained in Article 4, and their membership in 
the United Nations \Vould strengthen its universality. 



21st meeting- 5 November 1954 85 

The United Nations had been founded to serve as a 
centre where States having different ideologies and 
interests could co-operate and resolve their differences. 
It was therefore not only wrong but dangerous to seek 
to transform it into a closed organization, open only to 
States sharing the same ideologies and policies. 
22. Obviously the present deadlock was the result of 
the policy of favouritism and discrimination pursued by 
some of the great Powers. The Unit eel States represen
tative had once again opposed the admission of the 
peoples' democracies; but his allegation that they did 
not ful£11 the provisions of the Charter had never been 
substantiated by any factual evidence. That kind of 
approach \voulcl not help to solve the problem. It was 
the more un:ortunate because in 1946 the United States 
itself had proposed the admission of Albania and the 
Mongolian People's Republic. 
23. The opposition of the \Vestern Po\vers to the 
admission of Bulgaria, Hungary and Romania was in
consistent with their obligations under the Potsdam 
Agreement and the Paris peace treaties. The usual 
United States objections to admission had been stated 
hy the ?\ ew Zealand representative, who had said that 
the ,.;ignatories of the Potsdam Agreement were not 
pledged but simply authorized to support the applica
tion:; of the three States in question. But the Potsdam 
Agreement specifically mentioned Article 4 of the 
Charter ; and thereby the Powers had recognized that 
conclusion and ratification of the peace treaties fulfilled 
the conditions necessary for the admission of Bulgaria, 
.Hungary and Romania to the United Nations. 

24. Albania, Bulgaria, Hungary, the Mongolian 
People's Republic and Romania fully satisfied the con
ditions for admission. They pursued a policy of peaceful 
economic development, and they had achieved the 
fundamental freedoms proclaimed in the Charter by 
constitutional means. The representative of Czechoslo
vakia cited figures which gave evidence of the peaceful 
economic development in Hungary. Their foreign 
policies were based on the principle of international 
co-operation, and they had repeatedly intimated their 
de~ire to become Members of the United Nations and 
their willingness to carry out the obligations contained 
in the Charter. 

~:;. The position of the Soviet Union, Czechoslovakia 
:mel a number of other countries was essentially dif
ferent from that of the V-/estern Powers. The Czecho
slovak delegation had always supported the USSR 
propusals for the simultaneous admission of the four
teen States; it could not support the admission of a 
.~ingle group of States while others remained the victims 
of discrimination. The simultaneous admission of all 
the States mentioned in the USSR draft resolution was 
in the interests of the United Nations and would con
trihute to the relaxation of international tension. The 
Czechoslovakian delegation therefore wholeheartedly 
:-,uppund the USSR draft resolution. 

26. It would be premature to consider the separate 
:tdmi~sion of Laos and Cambodia; these countries had 
not yet been able to fulfil their obligations under the 
Geneva agreements. Full consideration should be given 
to the statements of the Indian and Polish representa
tives, whose Governments were members of the Inter
national Supervisory Commission. Both had expressed 
fears that discussion on the separate admission of Laos 
;mel Cambodia would hamper the work of that commis
:-ion. The Czechoslovak delegation agreed with that 

view, and accordingly urged that consideration of the 
question of the admission of Laos and Cambodia should 
be postponed. 
27. Mr. SUDJARWO (Indonesia) said that although 
a more elaborate account of the conversations held by 
the Committee of Good Offices would have been help
ful, he appreciated the reasons for the brevity of the 
report. l-Ie noted the Committee's opinion that the pos
sibilities of reaching an understanding had not been 
exhausted, and agreed that in view of the importance 
for the Organization of aclmittin~ qualified new Mem
bers, there was reason to hope that the differing views 
might eventually be harmonized, in the spirit of the 
Charter. 
28. The General Assembly must continue its efforts 
to solve the problem, particularly since in conseoumce 
of the relaxation of world tension to which the Grneva 
Conference and the recent General Assemhlv debates 
on disarmament had contributed, the worlr( situation 
was more favourable than it had been for some time. 
29. His delegation still supported the principle of 
universality of membership. which it considered vital 
to the life and purposes of the Organization. 
30. The real problem lay in the interpretation of 
Article 4 of the Charter. He recognized that imidical 
factors were involved, but the main problem was 
political and could be satisfactorily solved by a political 
approach. Consequently, his delegation saw the greatest 
hope for an eventual solution in the improved inter
national situation, and did not feel that the veto was 
the crux of the matter. The central problem was to find 
a common criterion so that States of any political or 
social structure could be admitted to the Organization, 
which had been founded by States of differing political 
structure willing to subscribe to the Charter in order 
to work towards universal peace. It had never been 
intended that all Members should be like-minded and 
have the same ideologies. 
31. He submitted that the question of the admission 
of new Members should be viewed against that back
ground. The time was ripe to encourage the General 
Assembly and Security Council to seek ways and means 
of admitting all States having a recognized Govern
ment. All the applicants were able and willing to carry 
out the obligations of the Charter. Article 4, paragraph 
1 of the Charter, it would be noted, referred to "other 
peace-loving States"; it was to be inferred, therefore, 
that all existing Membrrs of the Organization were 
peace-loving merely because they were Members. In all 
humility, the States within the Organization should not 
brand any applicant as non-peace-loving; the world was 
free from war, and peace was no monopoly of any 
group of nations. All nations wanted peace and it was 
the task of the United Nations to achieve it. All 
nations ,;hoalcl be enabled to share in that task. 

32. The Secretary-General had pointed out in his 
annual report (A/2663) that almost half the countries 
of Europe were absent from the council tables of the 
United Nations, whose effectiveness and influence were 
inevitably reduced by their absence. The World Fed
eration of Unitt>d Nations Associations had noted with 
regret, at a meeting held in Geneva in September 1954, 
that applicants for membership fulfilling the conditions 
of Article 4 of the Charter had not been aclmittecl, and 
had urged the General Assembly at its ninth session, 
and all Member States to secure, through agreement 
in the Security Council and a favourable vote in 



86 General Assembly- :Sinth Session -Ad Hoc Political Committee 

the General Assembly, 
qualified applicants. 

the immediate admission of Justice 1
; he believed that the dissenting opmwn 2 was 

33. It was clear that in order to carry that recom
mendation into effect a liberal and conciliatorv view 
must he taken of Article 4 of the Charter. The f~ct that 
States outside the Cnited Nations had been able at the 
Geneva Conference to co-operate with Member States 
and conclude an agreement to end war and establish 
peace should be a further encouragement to the admis
sion of applicants regardless of their political ideolo
gies. Their presence in the Organization would obviate 
the need for peace conferences, or any other confer
ences, outside the United Nations and would thus 
enhance its authority and universality. 

34. For those reasons, his delegation had voted at 
previous sessions for a draft resolution calling for the 
simultaneous admission of fourteen applicant States of 
varying political complexions, in the belief that such 
action would ensure a compromise on the interpreta
tion of Article 4 of the Charter. He would again vote 
for a similar draft resolution (A/AC.76jL.7jRev.l), 
and would have no objection if Japan were included 
in the list of States mentioned. 

35. His delegation looked forward to the unification 
of Korea and was ready to support the admission of a 
free, unified and democratic Korea under a single 
Government. During the war in Indo-China his Gov
ernment had adopted a similar attitude regarding the 
four regimes in the Indo-Chinese peninsula. In con
sequence of the Geneva Conference, those regimes had 
been given the opportunity to stabilize themselves and 
to secure their independence and sovereignty. So far as 
Viet- :\1" am as a whole was concerned, his Government 
was awaiting the general election of 1956, which would 
establish a free and independent government in that 
country. He welcomed any attempt to accelerate the 
admission to membership of Laos and Cambodia, as 
free and sovereign countries, and would therefore sup
port the draft resolution sponsored by Australia, 
Pakistan and Thailand (A/ AC.76/L.4). 

36. \Vith regard to the Indian draft resolution 
( Aj AC.76jL.8), his delegation agreed that the 
Security Council should make a new effort to solve the 
proble1;1 of the admission of new Members, since the 
Council bore the prime responsibility in the matter and 
had not considered the question for some two vears. 
The Secnrity Council shoulrl take cognizance of the 
imp:-on:cl world situation and perform its functions in 
the light of current developments. 

37. :\Ir. SOHL:VIA;'-J (Sweden) said that his dele
gation nnintainecl its previous view that the principle 
of the universality of the United Nations should be 
given eiTect and that only a liberal attitude on out
standing applications would lead to a solution of the 
problem of membership. 

38. He stiJI thought that the draft resolution sub
mitted hy the Soviet Union offered a possibility of 
compromise, and would therefore support it as he had 
done in the past. 

39. He noted the statement of the Committee of Good 
Offices that the possibilities of finding a solution had 
not been exhausted and that the work should therefore 
be continued. His delegation supported that proposal, 
but felt that the Committee should not be restricted by 
the advisory opinion of the International Court of 

more likely to facilitate a solution of the problem. 
40. He doubted whether the Security Council should 
be requested, as suggested in the Indian draft resolu
tion to consider the desirability of invoking the provi
sions of Article 28, paragraph 2 of the Charter to help 
resolve the problem. From a juridical point of view 
the Council was entitled to take such a decision; but 
the S·.vedish delegation would like to hear the opinions 
of the delegations more directly concerned in order to 
form its own opinion on the practical application of the 
proposal. 
41. }Ir. DE KADT (Netherlands) observed that the 
Committee of Good Ofiices had been established not 
because prospects for agreement seemed promising but 
because there appeared to be little possibility of recon
ciling the opposing points of view, at least in public 
debate,; in the United Nations. 

42. He regretted that the Committee had met with 
little .succes~, the basic positions and oppositions having 
rem::uned unchanged. 

43. The Polish representative had described the ad
vantages of a "package deal", but the Netherlands dele
gation remained unconvinced. The test of whether a 
particular State was peace-loving could not be applied 
without first deciding >vhether the entity in question 
was a State with a life and responsibility of its own or 
merelv a tool of another State. That criterion had 
nothi~g to do with any like or dislike of the political 
and social structure of a State. All States shouici be 
represented in the United Nations provided thev were 
sovereign and fulfilled the requirements of Artide 4 of 
the Charter. 

44. His delegation felt that each application must be 
considered on its merits, and could not be made con
ditional on the acceptance of other applications. That 
view rejected any suggestion of favouritism or of 
coercion. All qualified applicants should be admitted 
without delay, but the responsibility for delay must be 
ciearly !aiel upon those who ignored the relevant pro
vi~ions of the Charter. 

45. The Polish representative's observations on the 
d:-aft resolution recommending the admission of Laos 
and Cambodia seemed to indicate that the hopes which 
had been entertained of a relaxation of international 
tension following the Geneva Conference were doomed 
to cli.<tppointment. The Nether lands delegation would 
YOtc fnr th~t resolution; he called upon others to do 
likc.,,·i·;c awl thus give life to the fine words which had 
heen Si)Ol·:cn at the time of the settlement in Indo-China 
aho~1t a new spirit in intcrnation:.cl aff:tirs and the pos
sibility of pe>acerul coexistence. If agreement was still 
imp<Jssible on those two v.pplications it would seem that 
little could he expected of the futnre vmrk of the Com
mittee of Good Offices. 

46. \\-hiL;t not accepting the Indian representative's 
line of reasoning, he supported the view expressed in 
the Inclian clrdt resolution that pending applications 
should be sent back to the Security Council; but he felt 
that the Ad Hoc Political Committee m~1st first make 
it clear where it stood on the issue of Laos and Cam
bodia. He realized that the final decision lay with the 
Security Council, and suggested that the question of 

1 See Admission of a State to the United Nations (Charter, 
Art. 4), Advisorv Opinion: I.C.J. Reports 1948, p. 57. 

2 Ibid., p. 82. . 



21st meeting- 5 November 1954 87 

the use of the veto on the admission of new Members 
would have to be discussed as a whole elsewhere. 
47. His first impression of the amendments submitted 
by Argentina, Cuba and El Salvador (A/AC.76jL.9) 
was that they defeated the object of the draft resolu
tion itself, which had been meant to show that at a cer
tain moment it might be possible, as a consequence of 
the Geneva Conference, to take at least one step for
ward. He hoped that the Committee would take a finn 
stand on the issue of Laos and Cambodia and thus put 
to the test the view that a better political climate did 
in fact exist. 
48. His delegation would vote against the Soviet draft 
resolution (A/ AC.76jL.7 /Rev .1). 
49. Mr. Chih-mai CHEN (China) observed that in 
the ninth year of its existence the Organization must 
justify itself in the opinion of the peace-loving peoples 
of the world; yet it was unfortunately true that it had 
met with failure in attempting to solve the problem of 
the admission of new Members. 
SO. His delegation fully supported the view that all 
suitably qualified applicants should be admitted to 
membership. A number of former colonial territories 
had achieved independence during the post-war period, 
and while the United Nations could claim credit for 
having assisted in their liberation it had failed in many 
instances to enable them to play their proper role in the 
world community by becoming ::\1embers of the 
Organization. 
51. His delegation did not subscribe, hmve\·cr, to the 
theory of mechanical universality of admission, which 
was inconsistent with the Charter. States not properly 
qualified for admission should be excluded; indeed they 
could be expelled under Article 6. In line with that po
sition, his delegation had always rejected the so-called 
"package deal". He agreed with the Netherlands 
representative that some of the applicants mentioned in 
the Soviet draft resolution were really not States at all, 
and deplon'd the persistent use of the veto by the 
Soviet Union in the Security Council. Many proposals 
had been made, unfortunately with no success. to over
come that veto which, in his view, represented the real 
obstacle to the admission of many qualified States. 
52. He welmmed the suggestion that the Committee 
of Good Offices should be continued. 
53. His delegation agreed with the view expressed in 
the joint draft resolution that Laos and Cambodia. 
being suitably qualified applicants, should be aclmittecl 
to the Organization. The basic agreements leading to 
the independence of Laos, Cambodia and Viet-::\ am had 
been signed by those States and France in 1949. ~[any 
free n0tions had accorded them diplomatic recognition 
immccdiately afterwards and they had since participated 
in a number of internatimnl conferences, joined several 
UnitcJ Nations specialized agencies, and become par
tics to international conventions. 
54. He agreed with the French rcpresentati \'e that 
the qtulifJcaiion,; of Viet-~am \\·ere in no \\'ay inferior 
to tho,~e of Laos and Cambodia. In 1952. the French 
delcg·ation had sponsored draft resolutions calling for 
the admission of Viet-Nam, Laos and Cambodia and 
the General Assembly had adoptee!, by 38 affirmative 
vote,;, resolu-tion 620 (VII). The States in question still 
fulfilled the conditions of Article 4 of the Charter and 
the Chinese delegation still supported their admission. 
Unfortunately, the reference to the Geneva Conference 
in the first paragraph of the preamble of the Australian 

draft resolution (A/ AC.76/L.4) ignored the previous 
recommendation in resolution 620 (VII), and thus 
tended to imply that that resolution hac! been premature. 
55. His delegation's support of the admission of Laos 
and Cambodia did not mean that it was singling those 
two States out for special consideration at the expense 
of other peace-loving States. He hoped that the Com
mittee of Good Offices, if continued, would find a way 
to circumvent the Soviet veto, which hac! prevented the 
admission of so many qualified applicants. 

56. ::\Ir. PALAMAS (Greece) said that he would 
vote for the joint draft resolution on Laos and Cam
bodia in token of his Government's devotion to the 
principle of universality and of its satisfaction that the 
international community had been enriched by the 
emergence of two free and independent States in the 
Far East. That development hac! been to some extent 
the result of the Geneva Conference, but credit should 
also be given to France for its contribution. Even 
though adoption of the joint draft resolution was not 
likely to lead to immediate favourable action by the 
Security Council, the Assembly's support of the applica
tions of Laos and Cambodia would constitute a message 
of confidence and friendship to the new Governments. 

57. Like the representative of France, he considered 
that Viet-Nam was both a legal and an international 
entity, and Greece fully recognizee! the right of the 
Viet- :N amese people to be represented in the United 
Nations. As soon as the difficulties in the administra
tive arrangements for the two parts of the muntry had 
been rlisposecl of, he hoped that the Assembly would 
vote for Viet-Nam's admission to membership. 

SR Regardless of the divergent views which existed on 
the legal position with regard to the membership issue, 
all members of the Committee must recognize that a 
solution could be found only by achieving the co
operation between the Security Council and the General 
Assembly prescribed in the Charter. That co-operation 
was essential; it could not be evaded or by-passed even 
by a revision of the Charter, especially as any revision 
was certain to be blocked by the same veto which was 
currently paralysing the Security Council in a number 
of cases. Only an understanding between the two prin
cipal organs of the Organization coulu bring about a 
solution. It was in the light of that situation that the 
Assembly had established the Committee of Good 
Offices. \Vithin the verv narrow limits of its terms of 
reference, the Committ~e of Good Offices had done all 
thelt co;.1ld he clone. The criticism directed against it by 
the Po1i~h representative had been unfair; the Com
mittee 11·as not to be blamed for not hading an under
standing which die! not exist. If the Assembly wished 
to persevere in its efforts to reach a solution through 
an nndcrstanding-, it should widen the terms of refer
ence of the Committee of Good Offices. 

59. The Indian representative had argued that refjuests 
for ad:nis.,;ion could come before the .\ssembly only on 
the rf'C'c:mmendatinn of the Secnrity Council. If that 
1vas ~(J, all the work done hy the As.~embly on the 
n;.:mher;-;hip question throug-h the years would be 
legally invalid. Dut that work in itself was sufficient 
proof that the Assembly was fully empowered to debate 
the general issue and to deal with specific applications. 
The priority attributed to the Security Council under 
Article -1-, paragraph 2 applied solely to the machinery 
of admission. The Assembly, under Article 10, was 
always free to discuss any matters within the purview 



S8 General Assembly- Ninth Session -Ad Hoc Political Committee 

of the United Nations, and to make recommendations a USSR draft resolution (A/C.l/703), which indicated 
on such matters to Member States or to the Council. its support for such a solution. It was not prepared, 
Consequently, even the machinery provided in Article hO\Yever, to accept a "package deal" or an ali-or-none 
4, paragraph 2 was in a sense superseded by the approach to the membership question. For that reason, 
powers conferred upon the Assembly in Article 10. it favoured a solution which would give at least some 
Clearly, the Security Council held no supremacy over hope of the admission of a number of States still barred 
the Assembly; each organ had its special responsi- from membership by the absence of a favourable 
bilities, and both must co-ordinate their efforts to recommendation from the Security Council. 
achieve the purposes of the Charter. To send all pend- 63. It would be noted that the USSR draft resolution 
ing applic2.tions back to the Security Council, as sug- before the Committee (A/ AC.76jL.7 jRev.l) restated 
gestecl in the Indian draft resolution, would be to imply the earlier USSR draft; the addition of the word 
that the final decision rested with the Council and that "simultaneous" merely gave concrete form to the spirit 
once that decision had been taken there was no fnrther of that earlier draft. If the intention of the proposal was 
problem for rhe Assembly. That was contrary to the that the Council should recommend that the Assembly 
facts. Even if a decision was reached among the per- should simultaneously admit the States enumerated, it 
manent members of the Council, only the political was contrary to the majority interpretation of Article 4. 
aspect of the question would have been resolved. It was Moreover, no guarantee could be given in advance that 
a mistake to consider that aspect alone; there was also if the Council did make such a recommendation, the 
the question of principles, principles laid down in the Assembly would automatically decide to admit the 
Charter and endorsed by all Member States. The As- States concerned en bloc. The Assembly could not com-
~mbly was a force for the defence of principles. Even mit itself a priori, or commit future Assemblies, to any 
if an understanding could be reached in the Council, specific decision. If it \vas to remain faithful to the 
it must be an understanding acceptable to the Assembly. letter and spirit of Article 4, it was bound to decide 
60. In onler to bring about the co-operation between each case on its merits. 
the two urgan:; which, as he had explained, was 64. Nevertheless, if the word "simultaneous" was 
essential, it might be useful to set up a joint committee. deleted from the USSR text and if a few other conn-
If that suggestion was viewed favourably by the C?m- tries, among them Japan, were added to the countries 
mittee, it would require more detailed study, partlcU- listed, Argentina would be prepared to support the 
larly with regard to the composition of the proposed draft resolution. It would do so on the understanding 
oommittee. In any event, the least that could be clone that the Assembly was nnking no other commitment 
was to continue the Committee of Good Offices in than to consider each application on its merits in the 
existence and broaden its terms of reference. light of the Council's recommendation, and to admit 
61. Mr. MUNOZ (Argentina) referred to the analysis those States which it considered qualified under the 
of the Charter provisions on the admission of new Charter. That did not mean that the Assembly would 
Members given by the representatives of Colombia, take a decision in advance to admit some States and 
Cuba and El Salvador, and reaffirmed Argentina's reject others. The principle of universality represented 
oonviction that the veto \vas not applicable in questions an objective towards which the Organization must 
of admission. As the Advisory Committee of Jurists strive; it did not, however, commit either the Council 
at San Francisco had helci,3 the General Assembly was or the Assembly to admitting any State applying for 
free to accept or reject a Security Council recommen- membership. 
dation on the admission of any applicant State. It 65. Argentina considered that the draft resolution it 
could reject a negative recommendation, and could ad- was sponsoring together with Cuba and El Salvador 
mit a State to membership in the absence of a favour- (A/ AC.76/L.l0) represented the best way to reach a 
able Council recommendation. Moreover, the word compromise solution on the membership problem. It 
"recommendation" in Article 4 did not have the same was an effort to ensure that the Security Council 
meaning and impact as the same word in Articles 5, 6 should come to an understanding with the Assembly, 
and 97, for it had been clearly established at San with a view to breaking the existing deadlock. It re-
Francisco that the veto did apply under those three affirmed the principle of universality, hut qualified it in 
articles. Thus, while the veto was operative and decisive terms of Article 4; it reserved the Assembly's power 
in et'3es of o:usnension and expulsion of Member States to accept or reject a Security Council recommendation 
and in the app~intment of the Secretary-General, it was in each spE'cific case, according to its merits; and it 
not apnlicable to the membership provisions of Article instructed the Committee of Good Offices to further the 
-4-. N ~venhele~~. as the ma ioritv of .:\1 ember States were achievement of its objective by continuing its consulta-
obviously not prepared to. concede that the Assembly tions \Vith the mt>mhers of the Council. The Committee 
was incontestabl v sovereign in questions of member- and its eminent Chairman deserved high praise for their 
ship, Argentina .did not wish to impose its vie':' and efforts, notwithstanding their failure to achieve success, 
oouid only hope that there would be a change m the \vhich, he believed, was largely due to the fact that the 
major;ty position. In any case, the time had evidently Assembly hzd not given them powers adequate for a 
not come when the Assembly would be ready to reject satisfactory solution. 
and override the rep~:ated negative recommendations of 

· 66. Finally, the draft resolution which Argentina was the Security Counc1l. · b 

62. In the circumstances, Argentina favoured a politi
cal, or compromise, solution. As early as the sixth 
5ession of the Assembly, Argentina, in the First Com
lllittee, had submitted an amendment (A/C.l/705) to 

3 See United Nations Conference on Internat-ional Organiza
tion, II/1/39. 

co-sponsoring called for urgent and decisive action y 
the Council. The solution of the deadlock on member
ship could not be left to time; decisive progress must 
be made at the current session. If the Council dis
appointed that hope, the Assembly would have to col!
tinue along the lines of a policy of good offices; or, 111 

view of the Council's negative position, it might wish 



21st meeting- 5 November 1954 

to seek some other solution more in line with its obli
gations and powers in the matter. 

67. Two concurrent courses of action were open to 
the Assembly at the present juncture: it could seek a 
final solution of the problem; and it could make declara
tions of opinion respecting applications for member
ship. When it expressed such opinions, ho\vever, it 
should take care to mention all States \vhich it con
sidered qualified under the Charter. For that reason 
Argentina had submitted amendments (A/ AC.76/L.9) 
to the joint draft resolution on Laos and Cambodia. 
The recital of the other States which had been deemed 
qualified for admission would emphasize the As
sembly's continued adherence to its earlier decisions. 
However, the declaration of opinion, as amended by 
Argentina, applied to the whole question of member-

Printed in Canada 

ship, not merely to the applications of Laos and 
Cambodia. 
~8. ~he Indian draft resolution calling for the con
tmuatwn of the Committee of Good Offices had the 
sam~ object as the proposal sponsored by Argentina, 
but 1t left the final solution to some future date. Ar
gentin.a, Cuba and El Salvador sought a more positive 
cmmmtmen~ from. the Security Council; their proposal 
was more 1mmed1ate and should be given precedence 
when the various proposals were put to a vote. 
6~. ~s a. purely procedural suggestion, it might be 
w1se, m v1ew of the number of draft resolutions and 
amen~ments before the Committee, to establish a sub
committee to bring them into line before they were put 
to the vote. 

The meeting rose at 1.15 p.m. 

Q-42779-December 1954-1,875 




